
3 1 October 20 II 

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD 

FROM: Major Richard L. Rynearson 

SUBJECT: Supporting Documentation for .AF 780 

1. I have been ordered to use lethal force against certain persons, in certain circumstances, in clear violation of the 
Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. I cannot with good conscience perform the actions that are ordered of 
me. I have DO cboice but to tender my resignation. 

2. I am not a conscientious objector. I bavc vigorously terminated many of our enemies. 1 have been shot: at and 1 
have saved American lives. I have done things in combat I personally considered to be immoral, but I did them 
wilhout hesitation, as I understood them to be legal. War is not pretty, but what I am being ordered to do now, in a 
classified setting, is so clearly illegal, that I believe the words of Judge Quinn are appropriate: "Whether Lieutenant 
CaUey was the most ignoranrperson in the United States Army ·in Vietnam, or the most intelligeot, he must be 
presumed to know that he could not kill the people involved here." In my view, the illegality of the acts I am 
ordered 10 do, eclipses even those ofLI Calley. Mile I may be the only person to resign over these actions, there 
are numerous others who also consider them to be unlawful. 

3. This is essentially a legal question, and it has not been argued on its merits in COur1. No proper authority has 
ruled on the legaJityofthe order. I am DO lawyer. Nonetheless, I am bound to the Constinnion and not to any of the 
multitude of differing non.judiciallawyerly opinions on what it says or means. As former Cbief Justice Joseph 
Story states in his Commentaries on the Constitution, "The officers of eacb of these departme~ts are equa1ly bound 
by their oaths of office to support the constitution of the. United States, and are therefore conscientiously bound to 
abstain from all acts, whicb are inconsistent with it Whenever, therefore, they are required to act in a case, not 
hitherto settled by any proper authority, these functionaries must, in the first instance, decide, each for himself, 
wbether, consistently with the constitution. the Il(t can be done." I am equally bound by my oath and 1 have 
determined that these acts cannot be done. 

4. I volunteered for my CWTcot assignment Even today it remains my first choice. I have attempted to make 
arrangements to allow me to cootinue to provide vitally needed airpower without conducting unlawful operations. 
Arrangements were made and worked well for several months, but were later undone, leaving me with a legal and 
moral dilemma that continues to torment my conscience. I therefore have no option but to resign and request 
separarioo as soon as possible. 

5. My release is in the financial interest of the Air Force. The service bas significant manning concerns and is 
separating a great Dl8Dy officers who wisb to stay and serve. The loss of my potential retirement benefits, after more 
than fiftocn years of service, is the service' s finaDciai ga.in. It is with tremendous and sincere sadness that I ask the 
Air Force to please accept my resignation. 

Sincerely 

~:t.~= 
RICHARD L. RYNEARSON, Major, USAF 
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31 October 2011 

MEMORANDUM FORLT COL 

FROM: Major Richard L Rynearson 

SUBJECT: Response to Letter of Reprimand (LOR) 

1. I offer the following statement in response to the reprimand you gave me five days ago. I ask that 
you consider this response before making fmal determination on the disposition of this document and 
that it be filed with the original LOR and all copies made lAW Air Force Instructions. 

2. I whole-heartedly agree with your assertion that I have no authority to decide unilaterally whether 
or n()t to obey a lawfi.ll order. I further agree with you that that as a field grade officer, I have the 
duty, both legal and moral, to execute the lawful orders given to me by superior officers. 

3. I disagree, however, with your assertion that I refused to obey a lawful order. As I have indicated 
in previous disc),lssions, I maintain that the specific portion of the order is not lawful. As Stich, I 
cannot obey it as I have a duty to not obey any order which is unlawful. I understand that I make this 
decision at my own peril if the order is determined by a competent authority to be lawful; however~ I 
maintain my innocence in this matter. Additionally, I have not been provided any documentation or 
evidence by any individual to dispute my position on this matter. 

4. Previously, I was allowed to fly the majority of lawful missions, which do not engage in what I 
deem illegal activity. Unfortunately, you have removed this arrangement. As a result, lam now 
placed ina position to be regularly tasked with unlawful conduct, despite making it clear that I hold 
those actions to be unlawful and that I cannot comply. 

5. Because of the p()sition I have been placed in, I am forced to tender my resignation. Iwill be 
providing you with an AF Fonn780 in an attempt to address thismat1er, After eighteen years as an 
Air Force dependent and more than fifteen years as an Air F()rce officer, it saddens me greatly that 
there is no resolution to this situation short of my resignation. I have detemrined, however, thatit is 
the only solution that I can offer you to satisfy both of our concerns. 

Sincerely 

~J.~;zc 
RICHARD L RYNEARSON, Maj, USAF 



OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY 

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE 
WASHIN.GTON DC 

MEMORANDUM FORAFCAF/PSA 

FROM: AFCAF/PSAC 

SUBJECT: Adju.dicative Review 'x:e: RYNEARSON, Richard L, Maj , 

09127./2012 

I . Review of a 'Security InformatiQn File (SIF) dated 14 Noyemper 20 11 disclosed that Subject was 
issued a Letter of Reprimand (LOR) ort 26 October 2011 for failure to obcy a lawful order in violation 
of Article92, Uniform Code of Military Justice:. According to the LOR, Subject was given a written 
order on 23 September 201 110 fly in support of a chis'sified objective. Subject acknowledged the order 
on 24 September and provided a wr.itten response-that stated he refused to comply with the order and he 
would not fly or command andcoQtro.llinc"s w ith this part.icuiar objecti've. Para"graph 3 of the LOR 
caution~d Subect that recurrenGe' of-this type behavior GOuld jeopardize hiS" car~~r. 

2. ]n response to the 26 October 201 r LOR, Subject provided a response dated 31 October 2011. 
Subj ect stated that he whole-heartedly agreed with the commander in that he had no authority to decide 
unilaterally whether or not to obey a lawful ord~r and that as a field grade officer, 'he had the legal and 
moral duty t.o exedute the l~wful orders given by sup'erior officers. -Subject disagre.ed with the assertion 
thathe refused to obey a lawful order as he maintained that a specific portion of the order was not 
lawful and that he had a duty not to' obey any order which is not lawful. Subject further stated he had 
not been 'provided any documcntation.orcyidencc to !iispute his positioh. He acknowledged his 
decis ion could 'be at his own peril if det~nnined by a competent au.thority to be. lawful. He stated' he was. 
previously allowed (0 fly the majority of the lawful miss:ions, whlch did not engage in what h,e deemed 
to be illegal activity but that this arra'ngement had been removcd. Because of lhat~ Subjec t stated he was 
placed a position that forced him to tender his resignation and that he would be providing AF 780. 

3. SIF documents included an .AF 780 signed by Subject on 31 October 10 II requesting separation 
under AFI 36-3207 paragmph 2.4.17 wI~h an effective Oat,~ of I May 2012. A Memo for Record (MFR). 
from Subje~t dared 31 October 2012 (Supporting Documentation for AF 780) in which Subject stated; 
he is not a conscientious objector but, be could not in good consc ience perfonn the actions that he was 
ordered "in clear violation' of the Fifth Amendment to the U.s. Constitution." Subj ect provided 
significant detail regarding the reason for his refusal but ultimately detennincd he chose .res ignation 
over oQeying the order given. . 

4. On 1 November 2011 , the. commander established an Unfavorable lnfonnation FiLe (UlF) on 
Subject and on 14 November 2011, Subject waS notified of the e.stablishment ofa SIF as well as 
suspension of access to al l classified material. ]n his 16 November 2011 resporise tty the SIF Subject 
continued to assert the order given to him was unlawful and, that as of that date, no judicial authority 
li.~d ruied on the; lawfulness of the order. 

FOR OFFIG'AL USE (J,Yb:Y. This document cn~ltaill:; in/ormati(}nthat is pmlected IInder the Privacy Act of.l974 (fee AFI 33.332) 
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5. Also included with, the SIF documents was pages from UlFs that rcferenceo the following incidents: 

a. 1 September 2009, Subject denied posting any maleria1s of interest to the' Air Force. Times 
which he knew to be deceptive and false; and 7 S.eptember 2009, Subject was· citee!. for unwillingness to 
cO.operate and aggressive' behavior toward police during a routine traffic stop, After his arrest he 
bO'astgully taunted the police with threatening statements. Subject received an LOR on 27 October" 
2009 for both incidents. He was reprimanded for his post-arrest boastful statements to the police officer 
that were unprofessional and unbec;oming for an officer.. He was' also repriinanded for denying, when 
asked by .Public; Affairs, if he had posted material that may be Qf interest to the Air Force Times but, . . 
after repeated il1q'uiries did admit there "may be" infonnari.on on the internet. 

(l) In Subject' s 4 November 2009 response, 'he claimed both charges were unequivocally 
false. Subject stated he did dis~uss the officer's vi'olation of:Subject's Fourth Amendment hut, nof until 
after the' officer provided an unlawfui reason for his ~top (:out-of-'state tags). Subject stated he did tell 
the officer ~hat he had deployed with the military several times, been shot at, killed many people and 
w.a:iched far better men die to protect the Constitution he just trampled on. He denic~ being aggressive 
orthrealening in any way. 

(2) SubJed states w:hen asked by Public Affairs (PA) if he had any writings the Ai r Force 
Time.s could poten,lia"lly have access to, he mentioned his "biog" and provided the URL. He indicates he 
had two in-person meetingS

l 
OtIe'phone call and exchanged sev.eral emails with PA. He references. a 5 

Octo"ber -fnefuo from PA given to the cOinma'nder as we.Jl.well ihe email chain revealing his bl"og to the 
Air Force Times and states they are -attached and should be ti led with his response to the LOR. 
However, neither the memo nor the email chain was found in the SIF documents. Subject further noted 
in hiS" response that he was not aware of any problem with PA until he received the LOR. He expressed 
his con.c·em the the LOR ma:y be retal iation from concer(lS with policies and procedures within AETC 
that he had raised to the general officer leve"l and for his petition."to redress an academic freedom 
violation when his academically-protected opinions critical of a particular weapons system community 
and its hold within AETC tcadershi"{l were illegally disseminated throughout AETC and his chain of 
command. 

h. 12 March.2O"l 0, Subject lost h.is temper over a controller's decision to. send him around and 
engaged in an argument within earshot of student pilots 'and other instructors after' landi"ng. Subject 
received a Letter of Counseling (LOC). The' attached LOC dated l7 March. 2010 counseled Subject on 
his 'behavior contrar:y to good order and discipline. Subjcct's 18 March 2010 response admitted his 
professionalism lapsed and he apologized for his actions. 

6,. Review of Subject's SSBJ-PR dated 03/0812012 disclosed: 

a. Subject received letters of counseling or reprimand on approximateiy four occasions from 
01 /1998"10 1012011. Th'e one frpm January 1998 was fo r an arrest for Pu.bJiG Intoxication that W~S 
disnllsse.d. the others are ()utiihed above in the SIF r.eview. Subject freely discussed each inc ident in 
detaiL 

b. Eight often references' to include Subject's spouse were all favorable: One supervisor who 
established the SI.F in 11120 II following the LOR for FJlilure to Obey an 'Order did no~ recommend. 
The .supervisor cited Subject's failure to obey the legal o~de'r; the tact that Subject actively engages in 

FfJR..eFFfC/,4/:, liSE Ol>lb¥: This docuff'!ellfco/ltaif/.~ in/ormatioll Ihal i.f protecled under Ibe Privacy AGI 0/-1974. (-;ee AFI 33-332) 
andprote;r:.~ilfrom disc/o.~ure under the Freedomofll1formatiofl Acl, ·5 USC 5~2. Do 1101 release olllSide of{)tJD channels wi!ho!'t­
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"blogs" on the internet (hat while the supervisor has nev.er accessed, he is concerned, that Subject might 
be expressing very critical opinions which might affect younger memb.ers of the squadron; and that 
Subject's spouse is a civilian attorney/prior AF reservist In a legal position to whom Subject might pass 
on information, to include classified inf{)rmatiol1, in Qfder' to gel her· legal-opiruon;· One-other reference-­
had no reason not to recommend and in!iicated Subject has a good work ethic; holds very strong views 
and opinions which he readily expresses; particularly strong views about the constitution and how it 
should be "interpreted; and that his particular views could bc in conOict with how sUbject reacts to 
military orders. 

C. Court records from U.s. Western District Cowt, in San Antonia, TX reflect a civil rights suit 
. . 

file by Subject against San Antonio' Police Dep~rtment Oflic'er Edwin Richter. The action was pending 
at the. time the PS] closed but waS set for jury trial on 24 September 20'l2. 

d. No criminal records were found in law enforc:ement checks,. 

7. On the surface, it would appear that receipt of multiple letters of counseling and reprimands would 
indicate questionable Judgment and an unwiHingness to comply with rules and regulations. Howeve~, 
when each incident is reviewed on it's own merit, it would appear Subject is fully aware of the' U.S. 
Constitution and has openly challenged what he perceives to be a vioiation of either his own ri ghts or 
those of other American citizens. Both of the criminal arrests that led to LORs we:re dismissed and one 
resuited in Subject's current civil suit against the police offieel;. The LOC was acknowledged by 
Subject and. he accepted full responsibility for his aclions. The most recent LOR for failing ~o obey'a 
lawful o-rder j's the most s i'gnificant of;all given the nature ofthe circumstances. ,Howeyer, it is noted in 
both the SIF documents and the PSI, that Subject had prevlously objected to the partkularactivity and 
was previously a~signed to other duties because of his obj.ection. The SIF doclJments included some 
infomlation that was classified and was reviewed [or its relevance to this adjudication. Those 
documents give a better understanding of the gravity of the operation and provide insight to the reas'on 
Subject disobeyed the. order. 

8. The AFCAF makes a security clearance eligibility determination based on facts and circumstances 
t11.at are weighed aga~st the disqualifying and mitigating conditions outlined in the DoD S200.2-R. 
Adjudic-atiye Guidelines. It is not in the scope of duty for an adjudicator to detennine whether or not an 
order was or was not legal and security clearance eligib,ility detenninations are not a means of 
disciplinary actio'n.1t is the opinion ofthis adjudicatQr that Subject's objections to what he believes are 
violations ofihe U.S. Constitution, as reflected in the -documents associated with the SIF and psr, do 
not represent a security ,concern. The fact that subj ect was 'not criminally charged for his fai lure to obey 
an, ,order nor was he punished under (be Uniform Code of Military Justice, leads me t() believe that his 
failu.re to obey this particular order'an,4 challenging it's v.alidity did not risk QatiQtlal security and 
re'sulted only in a repdmand. 

(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

Operations Dlvlsi'on 
Air Force Central Adjudication Facility 
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